
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2011 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 PRESENTATION 

 Girl Scout Troop 31091 Presentation 
 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 Proclamation - Honoring Girl Scout Troop 31091   
 Proclamation - 9/11 Day of Honor in the City of Piqua 
 Proclamation - Honoring Piqua Baptist Church 

  
AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  

  
a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Approval of the minutes from the August 2, 2011 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting 
and the minutes from the Executive Sessions of July 15, 2011, August 4, 2011 and August 
5, 2011 

       
BB..  OOLLDD  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 8-11 (3rd Reading) 
 An Ordinance amending Chapter 34 of the Piqua Municipal Code to permit the disposal of  
 personal property no longer needed for City purposes 
 
b. ORD. NO. 9-11 (2nd Reading) 

  An Ordinance determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the improvement of 
 Broadway Street Reconstruction 
 
      c. ORD. NO. 10-11 (2nd Reading) 
 An Ordinance to levy special assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement  
 assessments relating to Stormwater Improvement 
 
CC..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 11-11 (1st Reading) 
 An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement  
 assessments 
 
 
 



 2

 
b. ORD. NO. 12-11 (1st Reading) 
 An Ordinance amending Schedule I-Speed Limits, adopted In accordance with  

City of Piqua Code of Ordinances Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted 
of Chapter 77 Traffic Code 

 
c. RES. NO. R-92-11 

A Resolution establishing “Trick or Treat/Beggars’ Night” in the City of Piqua 
 

d. RES. NO. R-93-11 
A Resolution authorizing the amendment rerouting of State Route 185 

 
       e. RES. NO. R-94-11 

A Resolution authorizing the purchase of Real Estate 
 

f. RES. NO. R-95-11 
A Resolution to authorize the commencement of the appropriation of 439 E. Ash 
Street, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County, 
Ohio for public purposes 

 
       g. RES. NO. R-96-11 

A Resolution to authorize the commencement of the appropriation of right-of-way 
of 515 E. Ash Street, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio in the Common Pleas Court of  
Miami County, Ohio for public purposes 
 

D.  OOTTHHEERR  
Presentation by Mr. Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Topic: “ReDO” Redevelopment Opportunities Plan 
  
EE..  AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT    
  



 1

REVISED 8-15-2011 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday August 2, 2011 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Mayor Fess welcomed Bill Murphy Interim City Manager. 
 

PROCLAMATION   
 
Honoring Ms. Julia (Judy) Dilworth – 100th Birthday 
 
Mayor Fess read the proclamation and wished Ms. Dilworth a Happy 100th Birthday. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the July 19, 2011 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting.  
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that the minutes of the 
Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting of July 19, 2011 be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, 
Martin, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 ORD. NO. 6-11 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance authorizing the submission of a proposed amendment to Piqua Charter Sections 
120, 122, 125 and 127 The Recall 
 
Interim City Manager Murphy stated this is the third reading of Ordinance No. 6-11 that deals with 
the Piqua Charter on the recall petition papers. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Russ Fashner, Forest Avenue came forward and stated he was one of the circulators and on the 
committee for the recall.  Mr. Fashner stated he had several questions and statements he wanted 
to clarify for the citizens and for himself on the Charter Revisions.  Mr. Fashner asked 
approximately ten questions and made various statements and references.  To view the 
statements, questions and the discussion in its entirety, the video tape of the Piqua City 
Commission Meeting of August 2, 2011 can be viewed in the Administrative Conference Room in 
the Municipal Government Complex, 201 W. Water Street, Monday thru Friday between the hours 
of 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM. 
 
Jim Cruse, N. County Road 25-A came forward and stated he is here as the Chairperson of the 
circulators of the Recall Petitions. 
 
Mayor Fess made a statement that Mr. Cruse handed the Commission Clerk some very thick 
binders full of information and asked that they not be distributed until he came forward.  However, 
because they were given to the Clerk she was required to give them to the Commissioners 



 2

because she had them in her possession. If Mr. Cruse would have passed them out himself he 
could have waited until he came forward and passed them out.  
 
Mayor Fess further stated they were not going to discuss this because they had just received the 
information, and not one of them has had a chance to look at it and have no idea what is in there.  
 
Mr. Cruse asked that Ordinance No. 6-11 be tabled at this time.  Mayor Fess stated no, we don’t 
need to table this unless the Commission decides to table it. 
 
Mr. Cruse voiced his opinion on the Ordinance not being tabled at this time. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the reason for not discussing the information at this time. 
 
Commissioner Terry asked if each recall petitioner showed a cover letter to each person who was 
signing the petition, and did each recall petitioner have the same information to give out to the 
people who they asked to sign the petition.  Was it written down or memorized did each petitioner 
say the same thing to the people on who’s porches they went? 
 
Law Director Wall stated the Charter requires that the identical information be, no matter who is 
circulating the petition identical information has to be taken around. One petition cannot have a 
different cover sheet than another; the Charter requires it to be identical.   
 
Commissioner Terry stated she is not talking about the cover sheet.  Commissioner Terry stated 
she gets a list of the registered voters before she goes out to get her signatures, and she asks if 
they are registered voters before getting the signature, some may not be aware they are not 
registered voters. 
 
Mr. Cruse stated the affidavit as far as he knows that he circulated that was on, and he went over 
the statement or the reason to every person he went to.  The other people he is not aware of, they 
were given the correct information, told how to do it, and were on their own in different sections of 
the city. The registered voters, a lot of people think they are registered voters and further 
explained.  Mr. Cruse read the actual wording of the language on the front of the petition that 
should be on there. “Whoever commits election falsification is guilty of a felony in the fifth degree” 
that is for those people you are talking about, that is not for us, stated Mr. Cruse.  
 
There was continued discussion of the affidavit and the legality of the signatures. For a complete 
review of the discussion on this subject, the videotape of the Piqua City Commission Meeting of 
August 2, 2011 can be viewed in the Administrative Conference Room in the Municipal 
Government Complex, 201 W. Water Street, Monday thru Friday between the hours of 8:00 AM 
and 5:00 PM. 
   
After a lengthy discussion a motion was made by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by 
Commissioner Terry that Ordinance No. 6-11 be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Wilson, Vogt, 
Martin, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Mayor Fess declared Ordinance No. 6-
11 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 8-11 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance amending Chapter 34 of the Piqua Municipal Code to permit the disposal of 
personal property no longer needed for City purposes 
 
Interim City Manager Murphy stated this is the second reading of Ordinance No. 8-11 to amend 
Chapter 34, specifically Section 34.35 Disposal of Personal Property this would provide the city 
additional alternatives to dispose of personal property that would include allowing the city to sell, 
donate or otherwise dispose of property to other governmental organizations. It would also allow 
the city to donate to an appropriate charitable organization, and specifically excludes donations to 
a private individual, private company or a for profit organization. 
 



 3

 
 
Mayor Fess stated at this point we have to go out for bids on anything we want to dispose of and 
accept the highest bid.  It was stated at the first reading that we would like to donate a piece of fire 
equipment that we no longer need to a smaller Fire Department that is unable to afford it.  This 
would serve two purposes it would help them, and it also would be available for use by the City if 
we should need to use it in the future. 
 
There were questions regarding how the non-profits and other governments entities would know 
what we have available, and how the city would handle food donations. 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall explained the city does not advertise for donations, in the cases we have 
had someone has approached the city to ask for the used equipment.  It has been mostly 
governmental agencies working together to exchange property. Ms Wall explained the process the 
city follows and the reasons. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 8-11 at this time. 
 
Ordinance No. 8-11 was given a second reading. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 9-11 (1ST Reading) 
 
An Ordinance determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the improvement of 
Broadway Street Reconstruction 
 
Interim City Manager Bill Murphy stated this is the second phase of the Riverside Broadway 
project. The project costs which include sidewalk, curb and gutter assessments are either paid by 
the property owner within thirty days of completion of the project, or at their choice, financed over 
a five or ten year period.  Roughly half of the residents choose to pay the city for the 
improvements with twenty nine property owners who chose the five year option, and eight who 
chose the ten year option. Typical assessments for the property owners ranged from $4 to $1000, 
with the highest being a little over $3600.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 9-11at this time. 
 
 Ordinance No. 9-11 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 10-11 (1st Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to levy special assessment to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement assessments 
relating to a Stormwater Improvement 
 
Interim City Manager Bill Murphy stated this Resolution involves a property located on Garfield 
Street.  The city received a number of complaints about a property draining water across the 
sidewalk and across the roadway, particularly in cold weather causing some icing issues. The city 
worked with the property owner to correct the problem, which was a broken tile in her yard and 
was able to get it done for a little less than $3000.  The property owner chose to have the costs 
assessed over a five-year period. 
 
Law Director Wall stated the city has been dealing with that particular property for months, and the 
resident hired legal counsel so Ms. Wall worked with the legal counsel and they chose to pay the 
assessments. 



 4

 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No.10-11 at this time. 
 
Ordinance No.10-11was given a first reading. 
 
RES. NO. R-89-11 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Cargill, Inc. for the purchase of road salt for the Street 
Department 
 
Interim City Manager Bill Murphy stated this is the annual salt contract and bids were received 
through the Southwest Ohio Purchasers for Government (SWOP4G). This year the city received a 
bid for $64.67/ton and we anticipate needing 2,500 tons for a total cost of $161,675.00.  This rate 
is slightly higher than last year, but the city is not required to purchase all of the 2,500 tons if it is 
not needed. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-89-11. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adopt Resolution No. R-
89-11. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
RES. NO. R-90-11 
 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into the contract with Camp Dresser & McKee for 
Professional Services of the Water Distribution System Master Plan 
 
Interim City Manager Bill Murphy stated Resolution No. R-90-11 deals with the Water Distribution 
System Master Plan and a contract with Camp Dresser and McKee Corporation for professional 
services. A Water Distribution System Master Plan will be completed and assessing the lasted 
improvements that have been made to the system.  There will be three tasks that will undertaken 
with this contract, one will be looking at data and current operations, collecting GIS data and 
looking at potential future demand requirements of the system.  The second task will be field-
testing, and the third task will be the hydraulic alternative analysis. 
 
Commissioner Martin asked if this study would tell us if there would be any issues with getting 
water either from the North or South?  Acting City Manager Murphy stated yes, it will let us look at 
our entire distribution system and allow us to figure out what challenges we may have with any 
potential solution. 
 
Mayor Fess stated this is another request by the EPA. Water Superintendent Dave Burtner further 
explained the reason for the study at this time. The last study was done over twenty years ago 
stated Mr. Burtner. 
 
Commissioner Vogt asked if this would determine the shape of our current water lines as far as 
dependability?  Mr. Burtner replied no, it will give us an idea of what needs to be upgraded. 
Commissioner Wilson stated he would like to get a little more detail stating this is a lot of money 
being proposed. 
 
Bob Yoxthimer, of Camp, Dresser & McKee Corporation came forward and gave a brief 
explanation on the reason for the study and what information the city can expect to receive.  It is a 
good time to be doing this study since the city is looking at a new Water Treatment Plant, stated 
Mr. Yoxthimer. 



 5

 
Commissioner Martin inquired if they would be looking for leaks, or if there are any major leaks?  
Mr. Yoxthimer stated no, this is not a leak detection plan.  Mr. Burtner stated money is put in the 
budget each year to look for leaks. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-90-11at this time. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-90-11 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
RES. NO. R-91-11 
 
A Resolution reappointing a member to the Stormwater Utility Board 

 
Interim City Manager Bill Murphy stated Resolution No. R-91-11 reappoints Jim Vetter to the 
Stormwater Utility Board.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-91-11at this time. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-88-11 
be adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-91-11 adopted.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Fess stated there are several Boys Scouts in the audience and asked them to come 
forward.  They are members of Boy Scout Troop 295 and they include Rob Bloom, Elijah Bloom, 
and Aric Tipps all working on various badges.  Mayor Fess thanked them for attending, and 
wished them well in getting their badges. 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street came forward and voiced his opinion on the Public Comment 
portion of the Commission Meeting and the way things are conducted at the Commission 
meetings.  Mr. Boehringer feels there is animosity coming from both sides. 
 
Jim Cruse, County Road 25-A, President of POINT, stated he has invited Interim City Manager 
Murphy to the POINT Meeting on Tuesday, August 9th, 2011.  Mr. Cruse feels the city is 
misleading the citizens of Piqua and stated he has done a lot of research and the information is in 
the notebook that was presented at the beginning of the Commission Meeting to the 
Commissioners and the Mayor. 
 
Kevin Pryfogle, N. Downing Street, inquired if it would be possible to have the traffic signals at the 
corner of Main and Water flash yellow instead of red on the Main Street corridor, since there is no 
traffic moving on Water Street at this time and no one is stopping either. 
 
Interim City Manager Murphy stated he would look into it.  Commissioner Vogt stated he feels it 
should stay red since contractors are moving through the intersection at various times. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated recycling is up and we look like we are going to set a record this 
year, and hope citizens will continue the good work. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated a Public Reception will be held on Thursday, August 4, 2011 from 
5:00 – 6:30 P.M. in the Commission Chambers.  Commissioner Wilson encouraged citizens to 



 6

come and meet the three City Manager candidates and send their thoughts and opinions to their 
Commissioners.  
 
Health & Sanitation Director Amy Welker stated she is very pleased with the recycling numbers so 
far this year, and have done a lot of work getting the word out to the residents. 
 
Commissioner Terry wished Julia Dilworth a very Happy 100th Birthday and stated she is a 
wonderful person and lives in the Fourth Ward. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she was walking across the street at Main and Market Street and 
stated there was quite a backup, and also noticed the bricks are broken up and asked if someone 
will look into replacing them.  Interim City Manager Murphy stated the intersections at High and 
Main and Market and Main would be done this year. 
 
Commissioner Terry also voiced her opinion on the recall issue, stating 75% of the voters voted 
against the recall and feels the voters have spoken. Commissioner Terry stated she feels the 
reason for a recall needs to be addressed. Commissioner Terry feels we need to get this all 
behind us now. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he was out getting his signatures for the upcoming election and is very 
pleased about the way Ward 2 looks, even the rental properties are looking good in Ward 2, hats 
off to all. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he wanted to comment on a statement made by Mr. Cruse previously 
stating the Commissioners are recommending the changes, all we are doing is putting them on the 
ballot for citizens to make the decision. 
 
Commissioner Martin noted there are water problems on Clark Avenue and Brice Avenue.  Interim 
City Manager Murphy will check into it. 
Commissioner Martin stated the only thing the Commission can do is put the issues on the ballot 
and let the residents make the choice. 
 
Interim City Manager Murphy stated the Commission asked the Utility Department to notify 
property owners as well as utility customers about disconnection notices.  A link has been added 
on the City Home Page, at the end of each billing cycle a list of the disconnects will be posted for 
property owners to check, stated Interim City Manager Murphy.  We encourage property owners to 
monitor the website, and feel this is the most cost effective way to keep property owners and 
landlords informed of the properties that have been disconnected. The list will be posted one to 
two days after the disconnect date occurs, stated Interim City Manager Enderle.  
 
Interim City Manager Murphy gave a brief update on the Water Street Reconstruction Project and 
Streetscape Improvements. Also noted was the upgrading of the electrical service in the area. 
Commissioner Martin asked how long will it take to complete the project.  Interim City Manager 
Murphy stated it should be completed in mid September, but will have City Engineer Amy Havenar 
give an update at the next Commission Meeting. 
 
Commissioner Vogt asked if there is any directional signage planned for the businesses located at 
the end of Spring Street off of Water Street directing customers on how to get to them. Interim City 
Manager Murphy stated he would look into it. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she has been criticized for the way she handled the Commission Meeting and 
further explained her job as Mayor, and the open forum discussions. 
 
Mayor Fess stated a large folder was presented to the Commissioners two minutes before the 
meeting and they had no chance to review the contents.  Information like this should be presented 
to the Commissioners before the meeting so they have time to review the information.  Mayor 
Fess stated she has tried to be generous with people and does not like confrontation, and likes to 
make sure the citizens have the opportunity to talk. But when the discussion is argumentative or is 



 7

no longer productive that is time when she as Mayor will ask them to take a seat. Mayor Fess 
stated she is very sorry if she hurt anyone’s feelings, further stating this is her job and that is why 
she was elected to the position and she will continue to conduct the meetings in a way that moves 
the meetings forward so there is not a lot of interruption and challenging going on, that is not what 
the meeting is for.  Mayor Fess further stated she is up for election in November and citizens have 
the opportunity to state whether or not she is too harsh on people.  If you have an issue with what 
they are doing, give us a call before the meeting and we will listen and talk to you, but we will not 
sit up there and debate with you, said Mayor Fess. 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 9:00 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Martin, Wilson, Vogt, and 
Terry. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
               _____________________________ 
                  LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING-EXECUTIVE SESSION 
ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

FRIDAY, JULY 15, 2011 
8:45 A.M. 

201 W. WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Fess called the Special Meeting-Executive Session to order at 8:45 A.M. 
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting-Executive Session is to consider the appointment, employment, 
dismissal, discipline or compensation of the City Manager.   
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to move into Executive Session 
at 8:45 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Executive 
Session at 2:05 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commission Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn from the Special Meeting-
Executive Session at 2:05 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 1

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING-EXECUTIVE SESSION 
ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 4, 2011 
9:45 A.M. 

201 W. WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Fess called the Special Meeting-Executive Session to order at 10:00 A.M. 
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting-Executive Session is to consider the appointment, employment, 
dismissal, discipline or compensation of the City Manager.   
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to move into Executive Session at 
10:00 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Executive 
Session -Special Meeting at 12:10 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Special 
Meeting- Executive Session at 12:10 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. 
Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to move into Special Meeting- 
Executive Session at 1:00 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to move into Executive Session at 
1:00 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Executive 
Session-Special Meeting at 3:30 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the and the 
Special Meeting-Executive Session at 3:30 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and 
Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 1

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING-EXECUTIVE SESSION 
ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

FRIDAY, AUGUST 5, 2011 
8:15 A.M. 

201 W. WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Fess called the Special Meeting-Executive Session to order at 8:24 A.M. 
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting-Executive Session is to consider the appointment, employment, 
dismissal, discipline or compensation of the City Manager.   
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to move into Executive Session at 
8:24 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Executive 
Session -Special Meeting at 11:17 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Special 
Meeting-Executive Session at 11:17 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to move into Special Meeting- 
Executive Session at 12:02 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to move into Executive Session at 
12:02 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Executive 
Session-Special Meeting at 12:59 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Special 
Meeting-Executive Session at 12:59 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ORDINANCE NO.   8-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 34 OF THE PIQUA MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
PERMIT DISPOSAL OF PERSONAL PROPERTY NO LONGER NEEDED FOR CITY 

PURPOSES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Charter Section 46 Division of Purchase and 

Supplies directs the Commission to establish by ordinance the procedures for 
advertising and competitive bidding; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Municipal Code Chapter 34 regulates the purchase 

of supplies and disposal of property; and  
 
WHEREAS, currently Section 34.35 does not permit the option of disposal of 

personal property in any manner other than by sale which is costly, time-consuming, 
and does not take advantage of other options of disposal; and 

 
WHEREAS, being able to donate personal property no longer of value to the City 

allows for benefits to the City and the entity accepting the property by saving in costs of 
disposal and allowing continued use to another agency or entity. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 

majority of its members concurring that: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Piqua hereby amends Chapter 34 of the Piqua 
Municipal Code as set forth below: (proposed language is underlined and language 
to be deleted is struck) 

§ 34.01  CONTRACTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS AND IMPROVEMENTS. 

     (A)     Contracts for public works  and improvements shall be awarded to the lowest 
responsible bidder within a reasonable time after advertisement for bids has been published at 
least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the city containing a reservation that the City 
Manager shall have the power to reject all bids and advertise again. The City Manager may 
reject all bids and advertise again, but shall not be required to do so, even when the lowest bid 
exceeds the engineer’s estimate by 10% or more.  

     (B)     The City Manager shall determine the appropriate specifications and bidding 
requirements not otherwise provided in the city code. Such determination shall be to the 
exclusion and preemption of R.C. Chapters 9 and 153, which are hereby rendered inapplicable 
to all public works and improvements in the city.   

PURCHASE OF SUPPLIES 

§ 34.15  PAYMENT FOR SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT. 

     Whenever articles,  commodities, supplies, materials, or equipment are purchased and 
delivered to the storerooms or warehouses of the city in anticipation of requisitions from the 



several departments, divisions, and it is impracticable at the time of delivery to apportion the 
cost thereof or any part of the cost to the several departments, divisions, and offices, payment 
shall be made from the city storeroom fund of the Department of Purchases and Supplies, to be 
repaid by the several departments, divisions, and offices as they receive the supplies upon a 
requisition. 

§ 34.16  ESTIMATES AND SUMMARY; AVAILABLE EQUIPMENT. 

     At the beginning of each year, and at such other times as contracts for supplies are to be let, 
the director of each administrative office shall submit to the Director of Finance an estimate of 
all articles, commodities, supplies, equipment, and materials anticipated to be needed by that 
department or office for its regular operation during the year. This estimate shall specify the 
quantity and character of each item needed. All estimates shall be transmitted to the Purchasing 
Agent, who shall prepare a summary statement which shows the total quantity estimates 
required by all departments and offices of each item of such articles, commodities, supplies, 
equipment, and materials. The estimates and the summary shall also show the amount of all 
articles, commodities, supplies, equipment, and materials estimated to be on hand or in stock in 
the departments and offices or in the city storerooms or warehouses, and the net quantity which 
it will be necessary or advisable to purchase during the ensuing year. The estimates and the 
summary shall also show the quantity, character, and estimated value of all articles, 
commodities, supplies, equipment, and materials or other property on hand in the several 
departments or in the storerooms and warehouses of the city, which are no longer usable or 
needed and which may be condemned and sold by the city disposed of by the City as specified 
herein in Chapter 34 of the Municipal Code. 

§ 34.17  PURCHASING CONTRACTS; BIDS. 

     At such times after the passage of the annual appropriation ordinance or after any 
preliminary appropriation ordinance has passed in accordance with sections 49 or 50 of the 
Charter, bids for purchase contracts covering all or any part of the requirements of such articles, 
commodities, supplies, materials, services, and equipment as the city may need during the year 
shall be received with or without advertising or otherwise as will permit which most benefit the 
city. 

§ 34.18  APPLICATION OF  REVISED CODE. 

     The provisions of R.C. § 5719.042 shall have no application to any contract governed by this 
chapter. 

§ 34.19  PUBLICATION OF BIDS; EXCEPTIONS. 

     No purchase of goods, supplies, or services in excess of $25,000 shall be made until and 
unless advertisement for bids has been published at least once, not less than 48 hours before 
the opening of bids, in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, all subject to section 46 of 
the Charter. However, advertisement shall not be required when: 

     (A)     Purchases are made by contract established pursuant to § 34.17; 

     (B)     In unforeseen emergencies, delay would result in the interruption of or detriment to the 
delivery of public services, as determined by the City Manager;  



     (C)     The purchase consists of supplies or a replacement or supplemental part or parts for a 
product or equipment owned or leased by the city and the only source of supply is limited to a 
single supplier;  

     (D)     The purchase is from the federal or state government or agency thereof, or from any 
political subdivision;  

     (E)     In the sound judgment of the Purchasing Agent, subject to approval of the City 
Manager, advertisement for bids for any specific purchase would not be of any material benefit 
to the city. 

     (F)     The purchase consists of professional services for which no possible specifications for 
bids can be drawn, subject to approval by the City Commission. 

     (G)     The purchase is from a joint purchasing program where the equipment, material, 
supply or service being purchased was obtained through a competitive sealed bidding process 
or a competitive sealed proposal process. 

§ 34.20  EQUIPMENT HAVING STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

     In advertising for bids for the furnishing of articles, commodities, supplies, materials, or 
equipment for which standard specifications have been adopted,  it shall be sufficient to refer 
thereto by the general trade name and by citing the appropriate standard specification or 
specifications, and by stating that standard specifications may be examined at the office of the 
Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent may require bidders to submit samples with their bids 
in cases in which it is practicable to do so. 

§ 34.21  REQUISITIONS; FURNISHING ITEMS. 

     (A)     Requisitions for articles, commodities, supplies, materials, or equipment by any 
department or office shall be addressed to the Purchasing Agent, approved by the director of 
the department or the head of the office, and if the department or office has available a sufficient 
appropriation balance in excess of all unpaid obligations sufficient to pay for the supply the 
Purchasing Agent shall either furnish the items requisitioned from the storerooms or 
warehouses of the city, procure them by purchase under a purchase contract previously made, 
or procure them by purchases in the market. 

     (B)     Whenever any office or division of the city requires supplies or equipment which 
another office or division of the city is able to furnish, suitable requisition may be made, and the 
supplies or equipment may be furnished. In such cases bids need not be obtained. Apportionate 
charges and credits shall be made to accounts affected by this transaction. 

§ 34.22  LOCAL PREFERENCE PURCHASING PROGRAM. 

     (A)     Definitions. 

          (1)     COMMODITIES.  Goods that can be purchased from a manufacturer or their 
representative and which are purchased by the city in amounts greater than the amounts 
required to be bid in the Charter. 



          (2)     NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  Janitorial and general maintenance service 
orders including those for fleet management, buildings, and mowing.  In addition, city printing 
services would be included in this category.  Any prevailing wage project would not be 
considered part of this definition. 

          (3)     CITY BIDDER/SUPPLIER.  A corporation, sole proprietorship, partnership, or joint 
venture who maintains a place of business within the corporate limits of the city as now 
established, or as hereafter established in the manner provided by law, and has filed or paid a 
payroll or earnings tax to the city in the most recent tax quarter.  When proof of situs is required, 
the city bidder/supplier shall authorize the Department of Income Tax to release the necessary 
information. 

     (B)     Local preference.  In awarding purchase orders for commodities and non-professional 
services, the city may grant a local preference to city bidder/supplier within the city.  In 
determining the lowest responsible bidder or supplier, a 5% local preference on all local bids 
exceeding the lowest, responsible, non-city bidder/supplier bids may be computed on the 
amount of the low bid meeting specifications by a non-city bidder/supplier.  The preference may 
be applied up to a maximum of 5%, but not to exceed $10,000. 

     (C)     Ties. 

          (1)     Ties between city bidder/supplier and one or more non-city bidder/supplier(s) 
meeting specifications shall be broken in favor of the city bidder/supplier. 

          (2)     Ties between two or more city bidder/suppliers(s) meeting specifications will be 
broken through a coin toss method until the winner remains. 

     (D)     City Manager authorization.  The City Manager or his or her designee may promulgate 
rules and regulations to implement this section provided they are not inconsistent with the 
expressed provisions of this section.  

     (E)     Savings.  This section may be subject to the application of the laws of the state or the 
United States of America which may preempt all or a portion of this section. 

     (F)     Local preference certification and waiver form.   

          (1)     This section provides for a local preference in the purchase of commodities and 
non- professional services by the city.   

          (2)     The rules and regulations adopted by the city of the administration of this section 
require that bidders claiming local preference complete the following form for each bid.  Failure 
to properly complete and return this form may result in not being qualified to receive preference 
under this section. 

PREFERENCE CLAIMED – City Bidder/Supplier 

BUSINESS NAME: _______________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS: ______________________________________________________ 



COUNTY: ________________  STATE: _________________  ZIP CODE: ___________ 

TELEPHONE NO.: _________________________  FAX NO.: _____________________ 

FEDERAL I.D. NO.: ______________________________________________________ 

If incorporated.  If a sole proprietorship, use Social Security Number of owner. 

TESTIMONY AND AUTHORIZATION 

The undersigned, on behalf of the aforementioned business concern, hereby authorizes the City 
of Piqua Department of Income Tax to provide proof of status pursuant to the Ordinance to the 
City of Piqua Department of Purchasing.  In so doing, I authorize the Department of Income Tax 
to disclose such records as may be necessary to establish qualifications for local preference as 
required by the Ordinance or any subsequent rules and regulations adopted in the 
administration of the Ordinance.  I, on behalf of the aforementioned business concern, hereby 
release the City of Piqua and its officers, employees, or agents from any and all liability for the 
disclosure of any information establishing these qualifications.  I further attest to the fact that the 
business concern is physically located within the Corporate limits and boundaries of the City of 
Piqua, Ohio.  By affixing my signature to this form, I also attest that I am a duly authorized agent 
of the aforementioned business concern. 

_________________________________          _______________________________ 

Type or Print Agent Name                    Agent Signature  

_________________________________ 

Date 

§ 34.23  JOINT PURCHASING PROGRAM. 

     (A)     The City Manager is hereby authorized to participate in any joint purchasing program 
operated by or through a national or state association of political subdivisions in which the city is 
eligible for membership. 

     (B)     Acquisitions of equipment, material, supplies, or services, through participation in joint 
purchasing program under division (A) of this section, is exempt from any advertisement and 
competitive bidding requirements otherwise required by law, if the contract in question was 
awarded pursuant to a publicly solicited request for a proposal or a competitive selection 
procedure of another political subdivision within this state or in another state. 

     (C)     The City Manager is hereby authorized to agree in the name of the City of Piqua to 
directly pay the vendor, under each such joint purchasing program contract in which it 
participates, for items it receives pursuant to the contract, and that the City Manager does 
hereby agree to directly pay the vendor. 

     (D)     If the expenditure of funds for the purchase of equipment, material, supplies, or 
services under the proposal available through participation in a joint purchasing program 



exceeds the amount specified by ordinance for which such purchases or services may be 
accomplished without advertisement and competitive bidding, such expenditure shall first be 
authorized and directed by ordinance. 

SALE OF PROPERTY 

§ 34.31 SALE AND DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY. 

     Under the power of local self-government conferred upon cities by Article IV of the Ohio 
Constitution and as a charter municipality under Article XVII of that Constitution, the City of 
Piqua has established the procedures described in this chapter for disposal of real and/or 
personal property interests, including money, in its possession.  The custodial care of any such 
property interest and its disposal under this chapter shall be deemed to constitute a 
governmental function. 

§ 34.32  PERISHABLE FOOD, FLAMMABLES, EXPLOSIVES, AND OTHER HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS. 

     (A)     If personal property which has been lost, mislaid, abandoned or stolen comes into the 
possession of the city, and if it is solid food or is a beverage (collectively referred to as “food”) of 
such a nature that it will spoil if not used almost immediately (“perishable food”), the procedures 
of this section shall be followed instead of any other procedures described elsewhere in this 
chapter. 

     (B)     If the city does not know the name or address of the owner of the perishable food, the 
city may proceed at once to use that food itself or may dispose of it by gift or other transfer to 
any person or entity, including but not limited to any non-profit organization, or may dispose of it 
as worthless rubbish. 

     (C)     If the name or address of the owner of the perishable food is known, the city shall 
make an attempt to give telephone notification to the owner that the perishable food has been 
left in the possession of the city.  If the city is not successful in giving such notice after three 
attempts within 24 hours or if the property is not taken away by the owners within 24 hours after 
the notice attempt concluded (or whatever lesser number of hours may be reasonable for notice 
and/or removal, based on the perishable nature of the food), the city may use that food itself or 
may dispose of it by gift or other transfer to any person or entity, including but not limited to any 
non-profit organization, or may dispose of it as worthless rubbish. 

     (D)     The procedures listed in § 34.32 (A), (B),  and (C) shall apply to flammables, 
explosives and/or other hazardous materials coming into the possession of the city. 

§ 34.33  OPTIONAL PROCEDURE UNDER STATE STATUTE. 

     Personal property which has been lost, mislaid, abandoned or stolen and which has come 
into the possession of this city may be disposed by the city on the basis of an application for 
disposal of property filed with the municipal court of this county under R.C. § 2933.41, as that 
statute may be revised and/or renumbered from time to time.  In the alternative, this charter city 
may dispose of such property under other sections of this chapter, and/or such written internal 
control policy adopted relative to property approved by the Chief of Police without necessity of 
any court order or judicial proceeding. 



§ 34.34  PROPERTY FOUND BY EMPLOYEES BELONGS TO THE CITY. 

     If personal property is found by an employee of this city during the course of his or her 
employment, that employee shall have a duty to deliver the property into the custody of this city; 
and any rights which might otherwise accrue to the finder of such property shall thereafter be 
deemed to belong exclusively to this city. 

§ 34.35  SALE OR DISPOSAL OF SCRAP AND PERSONAL PROPERTY. 

     (A)     Disposal of discarded personal property. 

          (1)     For purposes of this division (A) the following words and phrases shall have 
the following meanings ascribed to them respectively. 

               PERSONAL PROPERTY NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES.  
Personal property, other than scrap, which is not needed for any of the departments of 
the city. 

               SCRAP.  Personal property that has become unsuitable for use or personal 
property that has been condemned as useless by the City Manager or his or her 
designee. 

          (2)     Scrap shall be sold by the purchasing agent for the best price obtainable 
without advertising for bids. 

          (3)     Personal property not needed for public purposes, whose cost is less than 
$1,000, may be sold by the Purchasing Agent without advertising for bids. 

          (4)     A personal property item not needed for public purposes with a cost in 
excess of $1,000 shall be sold by the Purchasing Agent to the highest and best bidder 
after advertising for bids, or with the approval of the City Commission by resolution, or 
by public auction, which shall include internet auctions available to the general public. 

     (B)     Sale of personal property.  All personal property of the city which is not needed 
by the department or office which has charge of the property shall be turned over to the 
Purchasing Agent. If any such property is suitable to be used by any other department 
or office of the city, the Purchasing Agent shall either sell the property at its current 
value to the other department or office, or place it in the city’s storerooms or 
warehouses until it is needed by some department or office of the city. 

     (A)     PERSONAL PROPERTY NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES.  Personal 
property, other than scrap, which is not needed for any of the departments of the city, may be 
disposed of as follows: 

           (1)     By sale by sealed bid to the highest and best bidder, following notice on the city 
website and the public access station at least ten business days prior to the opening of bids. 



          (2)     By live public auction. 

          (3)     By internet auction. Notice of internet auction will be posted on the city website at 
least five calendar days prior to commencement of bidding. 

          (4)     By sale, donation or agreement to another government jurisdiction without the 
requirement of competitive bidding. 

          (5)     By trade-in for credit at the time of the purchase of replacement property, provided 
that trade-in value is established separately from the purchase price of the replacement property, 
and can be verified to represent fair market value for the traded property. 

          (6)     By destruction upon the determination by the City Manager that the surplus property 
must be destroyed for public safety reasons. 

(7)    By donation to an appropriate charitable organization with the approval of the City 
Manager.  No property shall be donated to the benefit of any private individual, private company 
or for-profit organization. 

(B)  COMPUTER EQUIPMENT.  If the personal property is computer equipment which, in 
the judgment of the IT Director with approval of the City Manager, has no market value because 
of its age and/or obsolescence, the Purchasing Agent may dispose of such equipment as most 
beneficial to the City, including donation to a non-profit organization or by discarding such 
equipment. 

     (C)     SCRAP.  Personal property that has become unsuitable for use or personal property 
that has been condemned as useless by the City Manager or his or her designee shall be sold 
by the purchasing agent for the best price obtainable without advertising for bids. 

 (D)  Any property donated shall be done so by written agreement that includes the proper 
release language as approved by the Law Director  and the acceptance of the property in an “as 
is” condition.  

 

§ 34.36  SALE OR LEASE OF CITY REAL ESTATE. 

     No real estate belonging to the city shall be sold or leased except in pursuance of a 
resolution passed by a majority vote of all members of the City Commission. This resolution 
shall contain the following. 

     (A)     The reason for selling or leasing the real estate; 

     (B)     Description of the real estate to be sold or leased; 

     (C)     When real estate is to be leased or sold by the city to the United States Government; 
the State of Ohio (including any department or agency thereof) any political subdivision of the 
state; any nonprofit corporation, association, or organization; or any specific person or persons, 



firm or corporation if, in the sound judgment of the City Manager, the sale or lease would be in 
the best interest of the city, no advertising for bids shall be required, if the resolution provided 
for in this section so states. 

§ 34.37  ADVERTISEMENT;  REPORTING OF BIDS. 

     (A)     Except for sales or leases provided for in division (C) of this section, when real estate 
is to be leased or sold by the city, the resolution provided for in § 34.36 shall be advertised, 
together with all pertinent matters, as in the case of other purchases and sales. 

     (B)     The City Manager shall report to the Commission all bids received in the matter of the 
lease or sale of real estate, and shall take such action thereon as may be directed and 
authorized by ordinances of the City Commission. The City Manager shall sign all conveyances 
for the sale or leasing of real estate of the city. 

     (C)     When real estate is to be leased or sold by the city to the United States Government, 
the state (including any department or agency thereof), any political subdivision of the state or to 
any nonprofit corporation, association, or organization, no advertising for bids shall be required 
if the resolution provided for in § 34.36 so states. 

§ 34.38  DISPOSITION OF UNCLAIMED PROPERTY.   

     (A)     Property that is abandoned and unclaimed for 90 days after being taken into custody 
by the city may be sold by the Chief of Police at public auction after giving due notice thereof by 
advertisement published weekly for three consecutive weeks. The Chief of Police may have the 
proceeds from this auction, in full or part, deposited into the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 

     (B)     In the alternative, the city may keep the property, or the Chief of Police may contribute 
proceeds, in full or part, from the auction (see division (A)) to a recognized citizens reward 
program for use exclusively for the payment of rewards or the Chief of Police may contribute the 
property to one or more public or nonprofit agencies (provided no part of the net income inures 
to the benefit of any private agency's shareholder or individual and no substantial part of the 
agency's activities consist of promulgating propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence 
legislation or to one or more organizations satisfying IRC 501(c)(3) or (c)(19). 

     (C)     This section shall not apply to property required for disposition pursuant to R.C. § 
2933.41  2981.01 et seq. or other similar sections of the Revised Code, except as provided 
otherwise in this chapter. 

     (D)     Bicycles that are abandoned and unclaimed for 60 days and have no value may be 
destroyed or otherwise disposed of by the Chief of Police without public sale. 

     (E)     The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall determine any claimant’s rights to 
possession of the abandoned or unclaimed property.  If the claimant is dissatisfied with the 
decision of the Chief of Police or his or her designee, he or she may appeal the decision to the 
City Manager or his designee within 7 days of the decision.  The City Manager and/or his or her 
designee shall hold a hearing within 14 days of receipt of the notice of appeal.  The decision of 
the City Manager shall be final. 



§ 34.39  DISPOSITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY WHICH HAS BEEN SEIZED 
BY AND/OR FORFEITED TO THE CITY. 

     (A)     A person loses any right he or she may have to possession of property, which was the 
subject of an offense, was used in a conspiracy or attempt to commit an offense, or was used in 
the commission of an offense (other than a traffic violation) if the person was a conspirator, 
accomplice, or offender with regard to the particular offense.  In addition, a person loses any 
right he or she may have had to possession of property when, on the basis of the nature of the 
property or the circumstances involved, it is unlawful for him or her to acquire or possess it.  Any 
such property shall be deemed to have been forfeited to the city. 

     (B)     Forfeited property in the custody of the city may be disposed of on the basis of an 
Application for Disposal of Property filed with the Municipal Court of this county under R.C. § 
2933.41.  In the alternative, this charter city may use any of the following procedures of disposal 
of such forfeited property, without necessity of any court order or judicial proceedings: 

          (1)     Drugs of abuse, as defined in Ohio statutes, shall be destroyed, or placed in the 
custody of the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States for disposal or use for medical or 
scientific purposed under applicable federal law. 

          (2)     Alcoholic beverages, as defined in Ohio statutes, shall be destroyed, or placed in 
the custody of the Ohio Department of Liquor Control for disposal. 

          (3)     Firearms and dangerous ordnance suitable for police work may be retained by the 
city as its property for law enforcement purposes.  All other firearms shall be disposed of § 
34.33 and § 34.38 above. 

          (4)     Obscene materials shall be destroyed. 

          (5)     Any other item of personal or real property forfeited under any law of the United 
States or the State of Ohio or ordinance of this city may be retained by the city for its own use.  
If not so retained and if the optional procedure of disposal under state statute is not used (see 
division (B) of this section) the property shall be disposed of under § 34.33 or § 34.38 above. 

§ 34.40  REIMBURSEMENT OF CITY EXPENSES. 

     The right of any owner or finder to claim possession of property pursuant to this chapter shall 
be conditioned upon reimbursement to the city by that person of all direct expenses incurred by 
the city for advertising, mailing of notices and for any transportation and storage fees paid to 
third persons in connection with the property involved. 

LAND REUTILIZATION PROGRAM 

§ 34.50  LAND REUTILIZATION PROGRAM ESTABLISHED. 

     (A)     The City of Piqua hereby adopts the procedures set forth in R.C. Chapter 5722. 

     (B)     The proper city officials are hereby authorized to take all necessary and proper actions 
to adopt and implement the procedures set forth in R.C. Chapter 5722 and the City Manager is 



directed to promulgate rules to set up a selection review committee, to delineate property 
selection and documentation criteria, to establish maintenance and reporting requirements, and 
to determine the length of time the city may own property for the program. 

     (C)     The Clerk of Commission is hereby directed to transmit certified copies of this section 
to the County Auditor, the County Treasurer and the County Prosecutor, as provided in R.C. § 
5722.02. 

SECTION 2.  All other sections of Chapter 34 of the Piqua Municipal Code not 
amended herein shall remain in effect as is. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 

 1st Reading 7-19-2011 
 2nd Reading 8-2-2011 
              
            
       ________________________________ 

   WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 
 



 

 
LAW DEPARTMENT – Stacy M. Wall, Director 

 
________________________________________________________ 

For Regular Meeting of City Commission July 19, 2011 

 
 
To: Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
From: Stacy M. Wall, Law Director 
 
Date: July 12, 2011 
 
Re: Amendment of Chapter 34, City Policy 
 
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To amend Chapter 34, specifically Section 34.35, Disposal of Personal Property 
to allow for a variety of disposal methods. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To adopt the Ordinance amending Chapter 34 to enable the Purchasing Agent to 
have flexibility in how to dispose of personal property that is no longer of value to 
the City and cannot be used by any City department.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Recently, two departments have had a request to dispose of personal property in 
a certain manner but were restricted by Section 34.35 and could only sell the 
property by bid.  In both cases, the departments wanted to donate the property 
as in one case, the property had no value.  In the second case, the Fire 
Department wants to donate equipment to another governmental entity that 
needs the equipment and by donating it the City would be able to access that 
equipment as backup if needed. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1. Adopt the ordinance to allow flexibility in how personal property is 
disposed of, including the ability to donate; 

2. Do not adopt the amended ordinance; 
3. Amend the ordinance in some other fashion.   

 



 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
It is recommended that the ordinance be adopted in order to allow flexibility in 
how personal property is disposed when no longer needed for City use.  The 
amendment allows for property to be donated but only to a non-profit entity or 
other governmental unit.  The amendment also provides flexibility in allowing for 
computer equipment to be declared obsolete and disposed of by means other 
than by sale.  The ordinance continues to distinguish between personal property 
and scrap continuing to require the scrap to be sold.  The amendment would 
allow for the City to have agreements with other governmental entities in 
donating property while being able to maintain access for backup use if needed. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There could be a cost savings by adopting the ordinance.  Currently the 
ordinance requires property to be sold by bid, which is a costly process due to 
the time involved and the cost of publication.  If the code is amended to allow for 
different disposal methods, the same costs involved in the bidding process would 
not be expended. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
 
The proposed changes are consistent with ensuring disposal is only after the 
property cannot be used by any other City department and it is of no value to the 
City.  The amendment further states that no for profit entity or individual can 
benefit from donation of the property, protecting the City’s interests in preventing 
conflicts of interest. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 9-11  
 

  
AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING TO PROCEED WITH 
AND LEVYING ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 
IMPROVEMENT OF BROADWAY STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Commission did duly adopt Resolution No. R-46-10 on the 6th 
day of April 2010 declaring therein the necessity of the proposed improvement 
hereinafter described; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution, estimated assessments with respect to 
said improvement were duly prepared and placed on file in the office of the Clerk of this 
Commission; and 
  
 WHEREAS, no objections to said estimated assessments having been filed, the 
Board of Revision of Assessments heard and determined the equalization of the 
assessment report; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the report of the Board of Revision as reviewed, has been submitted 
to this Commission and attached hereto; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The revised assessment report of the Board of Revision of 
Assessments is hereby approved and the assessments as recommended in said report 
are hereby approved and shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of this Commission; 

 
SEC. 2: It is hereby determined to proceed with the improvement of 

Riverside Drive Street Reconstruction Project in accordance with the provisions of said 
Resolution No. R-46-10 and in accordance with the plans, profiles, specifications and the 
estimate of cost for said improvement heretofore approved and filed in the office of Clerk 
of this Commission; 

 
 SEC. 3: The final assessments of the cost of said improvement heretofore 
prepared and filed in the office of said clerk (and as equalized by the Board of Revision 
of Assessments hereinabove referred to) be and the same hereby are adopted; 
 
 SEC. 4: It is further determined that the portion of the cost of said 
improvement to be assessed against benefited property shall be assessed in the 
amount, manner and number of installments as provided for in said resolution declaring 
the necessity of said improvement; 
 
 SEC. 5: All claims for damages resulting from said improvement that may 
be filed in accordance with law shall be inquired into after completion of said 
improvement; 
 



 SEC. 6: There be and hereby are levied and assessed upon the lots and 
lands bounding and abutting upon said improvement the several amounts reported in 
said assessment report (which assessments are at the rate of $10.00 per front foot of 
curb and gutter removed and installed, $3.25 per square foot of 4” sidewalk removed 
and installed, $42.50 per square yard of 6” driveway with sidewalk removed and 
installed).  Said assessments do not exceed any statutory limitation; 
 
 SEC. 7:  It is hereby determined that the assessments in the revised 
assessment report as recommended by the Board of Revision of Assessments are 
based upon the actual cost of said improvement; 
 
 SEC. 8: The total assessment against each lot and parcel of land shall be 
payable in cash to the Finance Director of the City within thirty days after completion of 
this improvement, or, at the option of the property owner assessed, in five or ten annual 
installments with interest at the same rate as is borne by the bonds issued in anticipation 
of the collection of such assessments and installments thereof which have not been paid 
at the expiration of said thirty day period shall be certified by the Clerk of this 
Commission to the County Auditor to be placed by him on the tax duplicate and collected 
at the same time and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by 
law; 
 
 SEC. 9: The Clerk of this Commission be, and she hereby is, authorized 
and directed to cause notice of the passage of this ordinance to be published once in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City as required by law; 
 
 SEC. 10: The Clerk of this Commission is authorized and directed to keep 
said adjusted assessments on file in her office for so long as any of them remain unpaid; 
 
 SEC. 11: The Clerk of this Commission be, and she hereby is, authorized 
and directed to cause notice of the levy of the assessments herein provided for to be 
filed with the County Auditor within thirty days after passage of this ordinance; 
 
 SEC. 12: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 1st Reading 8-2-2011 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      WILLLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 











ORDINANCE NO. 10-11  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO PAY FOR THE COST OF NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
ASSESSMENTS RELATING TO A STORMWATER 
IMPROVEMENT 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 

the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as reported to this 
Commission in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and 
that there be and is hereby levied and assessed upon the lot improved by the 
aforementioned nuisance abatement, the amount reported as aforesaid which 
assessment, together with the description of said lot is now on file in the office of the 
Clerk of this Commission and in the office of the Director of Finance and is not in 
excess of the special benefits to said property, and is not in excess of a statutory 
limitation. 

 
SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot and parcel of land shall be 

payable in cash to the Finance Director of the City within thirty days after completion of 
this improvement, or, at the option of the property owner assessed, in five installments 
with interest at the same rate as is borne by the bonds issued in anticipation of the 
collection of such assessments and installments thereof which have not been paid at 
the expiration of said thirty day period shall be certified by the Clerk of this Commission 
to the County Auditor to be placed by him on the tax duplicate and collected at the 
same time and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by law.  
Said assessment shall include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, 
ordinances and resolutions required. 

 
 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 1st Reading 8-2-2011 
 

     ____________________________ 
      WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 







ORDINANCE NO.  11-11  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO PAY FOR THE COST OF NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
ASSESSMENTS 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 

the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as reported to this 
Commission in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and 
that there be and is hereby levied and assessed upon the lot improved by the 
aforementioned nuisance abatement, the amount reported as aforesaid which 
assessment, together with the description of said lot is now on file in the office of the 
Clerk of this Commission and in the office of the Director of Finance and is not in 
excess of the special benefits to said property, and is not in excess of a statutory 
limitation. 

 
  
SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 

at the option of the owner, in two equal semiannual installments.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Finance.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remained unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 























RESOLUTION NO. R-92-11 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING “TRICK   
   OR TREAT/BEGGARS’ NIGHT” IN THE CITY 
   OF PIQUA     
 
 
 WHEREAS, the annual celebration of Halloween has become a tradition in 
Piqua; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by common consent of the municipalities of Miami County, 
Monday, October 31, 2011, from 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. has been designated “Trick 
or Treat/Beggars’ Night”; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby proclaims Monday, October 31, 2011 
from 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. as official “Trick or Treat/Beggars’ Night” in the City of 
Piqua. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      WILLIAM D.VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 























































RESOLUTION NO. R-95 -11 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
APPROPRIATION OF 439 E. ASH STREET, PIQUA, MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO IN THE 

COMMON PLEAS COURT OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 
   

WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Plan includes the widening of E. Ash 
Street, U.S. Route 36, east and westbound lanes from the River Bridge to Spring Street; 
and   
 

WHEREAS, the City has received federal and state funding for the widening of E. 
Ash Street, U.S. Route 36; and 
 

WHEREAS, the widening project has been in the planning stages since 2005 and 
is scheduled for completion in 2012; and   

 
WHEREAS, the widening of E. Ash Street, U.S. Route 36 is needed due to the 

volume of traffic, widening from two lanes to three lanes, noting that it is direct access to 
the downtown area and for traffic accessing or exiting Interstate 75 and is therefore 
needed for public purposes; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 163 of the Ohio Revised Code has been complied with, 

including providing notice to the property owner of 439 E. Ash Street that the City 
desires to purchase the property in order to complete the widening of E. Ash Street, 
U.S. Rt. 36; and  

 
WHEREAS, the property owner was made aware of the City’s need to acquire 

the property on July 8, 2010, and negotiations have been unsuccessful to date but are 
ongoing and fair market value has been offered. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1. In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the widening of 
E. Ash Street, U.S. Route 36 serves a public purpose and is a project being 
completed in conjunction with federal and state funds and the direction of the Ohio 
Department of Transportation. 
  
SECTION 2. The acquisition of 439 E. Ash Street is needed for the completion of 
the widening of E. Ash Street, U.S. Route 36. 
 
SECTION 3.   The City Law Director is authorized to commence appropriation 
proceedings in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County with regards to 439 E. 
Ash Street, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, for public purposes. 
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 
               



        _______________________________ 
        WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



 
 
For Regular Meeting of City Commission 
August 16, 2011 
 
 
To: William Murphy, Interim City Manager 
 
From: Stacy M. Wall, Law Director 
 
Date: August 11, 2011 
 
Re: Acquisition of Property for Ash Street Project 
 
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To be able to commence appropriation proceedings for the right-of-way of 515 E. 
Ash Street and the building on 439 E. Ash Street for the widening of the E. Ash 
Street project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To adopt the Resolution to permit appropriation proceedings to commence 
against 439 and 515 E. Ash Street to allow the E. Ash Street project to move 
forward.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City has been in the planning stages of the widening of E. Ash Street since 
2005 and the project is in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan in 
focusing on the entrances to the City.  The City has received federal and state 
funding for the project and said project has been authorized by the City 
Commission.  O.R. Colan Associates did appraisals on the properties and on 
behalf of the City has informed the property owners of the project and the need to 
acquire individual properties or right-of way.  All of the properties that were 
needed for the project, with the exception of two, have agreed to the acquisition. 
 
The two properties remaining include: (1) 515 E. Ash Street, a residential 
property owned by Billy and Christine Bryant; and (2) 439 E. Ash Street, a 
commercial property owned by Bonnie Berger.  Communications with the 
property owners began in July 2010.  On the Bryant property, the City needs to 
acquire right-of-way and has made a fair market value offer, which has been 
refused.  The City has also made an offer to purchase the entire property, which 
has also been refused.  There are no further negotiations with Mr. and Mrs. 



Bryant and the acquisition of the right-of-way is required to complete the Ash 
Street project. 
 
Ms. Berger was also contacted in July 2010 regarding the City’s need to 
purchase the property.  The City will purchase the building and the right-of-way 
but Ms. Berger would remain the owner of the lot.  Although negotiations 
continue for the acquisition, they are nearing end and the City needs to acquire 
the property or the E. Ash Street project cannot continue.  
 
Both property owners have been offered fair market value and have the right to 
conduct their own appraisal.  Both owners have been informed of any relocation 
rights. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1. Adopt the resolutions to allow appropriation actions to commence and 
continue the E. Ash Street project. 

2. Do not adopt the resolutions and risk losing federal and state funding for 
the E. Ash Street project as the project will stop without the acquisitions. 

  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
It is recommended that the resolutions be adopted as once the appropriation 
actions commence in a court of law, the project will continue and the City will not 
risk losing its funding. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
If the resolutions are not adopted, the City will lose millions of dollars in funding 
as the project will not go forward. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
 
The resolutions are in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and the 
acquisitions and the widening of E. Ash Street are in accordance with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  



RESOLUTION NO. R-96-11 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
APPROPRIATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 515 E. ASH STREET, PIQUA, MIAMI 

COUNTY, OHIO IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO FOR 
PUBLIC PURPOSES 

   
WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Plan includes the widening of E. Ash 

Street, U.S. Route 36, east and westbound lanes from the River Bridge to Spring Street; 
and   
 

WHEREAS, the City has received federal and state funding for the widening of E. 
Ash Street, U.S. Route 36; and 
 

WHEREAS, the widening project has been in the planning stages since 2005 and 
is scheduled for completion in 2012; and   

 
WHEREAS, the widening of E. Ash Street, U.S. Route 36 is needed due to the 

volume of traffic, widening from two lanes to three lanes, noting that it is direct access to 
the downtown area and for traffic accessing or exiting Interstate 75 and is therefore 
needed for public purposes; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 163 of the Ohio Revised Code has been complied with, 

including providing notice to the property owner of 515 E. Ash Street that the City 
desires to purchase the right-of-way in order to complete the widening of E. Ash Street, 
U.S. Rt. 36; and  

 
WHEREAS, the property owner was made aware of the City’s need to acquire 

the right-of-way on July 8, 2010, and negotiations have been unsuccessful although fair 
market value has been offered. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1. In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the widening of 
E. Ash Street, U.S. Route 36 serves a public purpose and is a project being 
completed in conjunction with federal and state funds and the direction of the Ohio 
Department of Transportation. 
  
SECTION 2. The acquisition of the right-of-way of 515 E. Ash Street is needed 
for the completion of the widening of E. Ash Street, U.S. Route 36. 
 
SECTION 3.   The City Law Director is authorized to commence appropriation 
proceedings in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County with regards to 515 E. 
Ash Street, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, for public purposes. 
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 



               
        _______________________________ 
        WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



 
 
For Regular Meeting of City Commission 
August 16, 2011 
 
 
To: William Murphy, Interim City Manager 
 
From: Stacy M. Wall, Law Director 
 
Date: August 11, 2011 
 
Re: Acquisition of Property for Ash Street Project 
 
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To be able to commence appropriation proceedings for the right-of-way of 515 E. 
Ash Street and the building on 439 E. Ash Street for the widening of the E. Ash 
Street project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To adopt the Resolution to permit appropriation proceedings to commence 
against 439 and 515 E. Ash Street to allow the E. Ash Street project to move 
forward.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City has been in the planning stages of the widening of E. Ash Street since 
2005 and the project is in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan in 
focusing on the entrances to the City.  The City has received federal and state 
funding for the project and said project has been authorized by the City 
Commission.  O.R. Colan Associates did appraisals on the properties and on 
behalf of the City has informed the property owners of the project and the need to 
acquire individual properties or right-of way.  All of the properties that were 
needed for the project, with the exception of two, have agreed to the acquisition. 
 
The two properties remaining include: (1) 515 E. Ash Street, a residential 
property owned by Billy and Christine Bryant; and (2) 439 E. Ash Street, a 
commercial property owned by Bonnie Berger.  Communications with the 
property owners began in July 2010.  On the Bryant property, the City needs to 
acquire right-of-way and has made a fair market value offer, which has been 
refused.  The City has also made an offer to purchase the entire property, which 
has also been refused.  There are no further negotiations with Mr. and Mrs. 



Bryant and the acquisition of the right-of-way is required to complete the Ash 
Street project. 
 
Ms. Berger was also contacted in July 2010 regarding the City’s need to 
purchase the property.  The City will purchase the building and the right-of-way 
but Ms. Berger would remain the owner of the lot.  Although negotiations 
continue for the acquisition, they are nearing end and the City needs to acquire 
the property or the E. Ash Street project cannot continue.  
 
Both property owners have been offered fair market value and have the right to 
conduct their own appraisal.  Both owners have been informed of any relocation 
rights. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1. Adopt the resolutions to allow appropriation actions to commence and 
continue the E. Ash Street project. 

2. Do not adopt the resolutions and risk losing federal and state funding for 
the E. Ash Street project as the project will stop without the acquisitions. 

  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
It is recommended that the resolutions be adopted as once the appropriation 
actions commence in a court of law, the project will continue and the City will not 
risk losing its funding. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
If the resolutions are not adopted, the City will lose millions of dollars in funding 
as the project will not go forward. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
 
The resolutions are in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and the 
acquisitions and the widening of E. Ash Street are in accordance with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  




